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Statement of the Case


Petitioner, T. M., bnf T. M., appeals the action of Respondent, Cypress-Fairbanks Independent School District, concerning the denial of his grievance.  Joan Stewart is the Administrative Law Judge appointed by the Commissioner of Education to preside over this case.  Petitioner appeared pro se.  Respondent is represented by Elneita Hutchins-Taylor, Attorney at Law, Houston, Texas.


The Administrative Law Judge issued a Proposal for Decision recommending that Petitioner’s appeal be dismissed for lack of jurisdiction.  Exceptions and replies were timely filed and considered.

Findings of Fact


The following Findings of Fact are supported by substantial evidence:

1.
During all times relevant to this complaint, Petitioner’s son was a student at Wilson Elementary School.

2.
Petitioner’s son was a beginning kindergarten student in August 2001.

3.
Petitioner’s son missed the bus two times during the first week of kindergarten in 2001.

4.
Petitioner’s son was required to sign a discipline form on August 28, 2001.  At that time, Petitioner’s son was a five-year old kindergarten student and was not able to read.

5.
Petitioner had a Level II grievance hearing conference with Dr. Peggy Duryea on December 14, 2001.

6.
Respondent mailed the notification of the decision of its board of trustees on February 13, 2002.  Respondent did not send the notification via certified mail, return receipt requested.  

7.
Respondent does not have a notification policy with a mailbox rule which includes a presumption of notification within a certain number of days after the notification was mailed.

8.
Petitioner’s letter of appeal to the Commissioner is dated April 14, 2002.

Discussion


On April 14, 2002, Petitioner filed a letter that comprised the basis of his appeal to the Commissioner.  During the prehearing conference Petitioner was given the opportunity to file an Amended Petition because Petitioner’s Original Petition did not state a violation of the “schools laws of this state”
, and thereby did not invoke the jurisdiction of the Commissioner of Education.  Petitioner submitted a document entitled “Petitioner’s Plea to Jurisdiction and Relief.”  This documentary submission shall be considered Petitioner’s Amended Petition.  Pleadings are accorded their true status regardless of errors in designation.  19 TAC § 157.1047.  Respondent has filed a Plea to the Jurisdiction in response to Petitioner’s Amended Petition and argues that the Commissioner lacks jurisdiction to hear this appeal.  

Background

On two afternoons, during the first week of kindergarten in August of 2001, Petitioner’s five-year old son missed the school bus that was designated to take him home.  Also, during August 2001, Petitioner’s five-year old son was required to sign a disciplinary form for “inappropriate physical contact.”  Petitioner filed a grievance regarding the aforementioned occurrences.  As Petitioner pursued the grievance process, he accrued additional complaints regarding the initial grievance process.  As a result of the aforementioned incidents, Petitioner now brings this appeal before the Commissioner.  Respondent argues that Petitioner did not file his Petition for Review before the Commissioner of Education in a timely manner in compliance with 19 Texas Administrative Code § 157.1051.  Respondent additionally argues that Petitioner has failed to allege a violation of the school laws of the State of Texas and, therefore, the Commissioner lacks jurisdiction to hear this appeal.

Timeliness

Respondent argues that Petitioner did not file his appeal within 45 calendar days  after the decision complained of was communicated to Petitioner.  Respondent mailed its decision to Petitioner on February 13, 2002; the appeal was filed April 14, 2002.  Respondent cannot prove when Petitioner received the notice of the decision since Respondent did not mail the deciion by certified mail, return receipt requested, nor does Respondent have a poilcycontaining the mailbox rule which creates a presumption of notificiation.  Having no evidence, Respondent is unable to establish a violation of the notification provisions of the Commissioner’s rules.  Petitioner’s appeal is timely.

Violation of School Law


Petitioner has made several allegations in his Amended Petition.  The Commissioner of Education does not have jurisdiction over the allegation of a violation of the Family Educational Right to Privacy Act 20 U.S.C. §1232g.  The Commissioner does not have jurisdiction over an allegation of a violation of the 20 U.S.C. Chapter 70, Subchapter II, Part C, Subpart 5(a) #4 and (c) #1, dealing with teacher liability.  These complaints should be dismissed for lack of jurisdiction.  


In order to invoke the jurisdiction of the Commissioner in an appeal under section 7.057 of the Texas Education Code, Petitioner must establish a violation of one of the school laws of this state, or a violation of one of the rules duly promulgated thereunder.  


Petitioner states that he has:

.  .  .  appealed the decision of Cypress-Fairbanks Independent School District’s Board of Trustees to uphold the Level Two decision rendered by Dr. Peggy Duryea (Associate Superintendent for School Administration and Human Resources) because correspondences were presented to the Board of Trustees and Mr. Richard Berry (Superintendent) to show that Dr. Duryea’s investigation was faulty, inaccurate, misleading, and misrepresenting; therefore, a violation of the Texas Education Code 26.001, Parents Rights and Responsibilities.


Sections 26.001(c) and 26.001 (d) of the Texas Education Code require a parental rights complaint process and prohibit a district from limiting parental rights.  The facts alleged by Petitioner, even if true, do not allege a violation of section 26.001(c) or section 26.001 (d) of the Texas Education Code.


Petitioner asserts that he made numerous attempts to correct or delete inaccurate, misleading, and allegedly maligning documentations that were presented by some admionistrators.  The allegations do not state a violation of the school laws of this state.

Petitioner alleges that the district failed to follow its policy in holding the Level II hearing and that an audiotape is inaccurate.  Petitioner alleges that this violated Tex. Educ. Code §26.011 which requires the board of trustess to adopt a parental grievance process.  The facts alleged to not state a violation of this section. 

Petitioner claims that he:

.  .  .  provided Dr. Peggy Duryea with noteworthy facts that Dr. Duryea audio taped on a cassette tape; however, Dr. Duryea altered those facts and presented her own inaccurate version, for example Dr. Duryea writes, (a) “The fact that T. was mistakenly taken to the front porch may have been a result of the fact that he went to the porch the day before because he was a car rider.”  Petitioner disagrees because Mrs. Collins said that he was wandering the (school) building.  More importantly Petitioner carefully and clearly articulated to Dr. Duryea that Petitioner picked-up T.M. the day before at approximately 11:25 A.M. lunchtime.  T.M. did not go to the front porch the day before he left with Petitioner and did not return to school that day. (b) “You also stated that T. signed one of the forms dated August 28, 2001, but not the second one on that date or the third discipline form from October.”  Petitioner told Dr. Duryea that he thinks T. signed the second discipline form issued to him on August 28, 2001.  (c) Dr. Duryea wrote, “I confirmed that fact (T.M. signing the first discipline form) with Mrs. Collins and Mrs. Smith.”  What she confirmed was totally inaccurate.  This tells Petitioner that Mrs. Collins and Mrs. Smith are not creditable.  Petitioner provided Dr. Duryea with both forms in which it clearly indicates/shows that that the second discipline form was signed by T.M.  T.M., age five, does not know how to read or write the English language.  (d) During the Level III hearing Dr. Duryea told the board of trustees and Mr. Richard Berry (Superintendent of Schools) that she did not specify in her letter addressed to the Petitioner that T.M. signed the first discipline form (which she did).  Dr. Duryea provided untruthful information when she addressed the board of trustees and Mr. Richard Berry. Petitioner pointed out Dr. Duryea’s false statement to the board of trustees and Mr. Berry, but the board of trustees and Mr. Berry remained motionless and nonresponsive.  During the Level III hearing Petitioner told the board of trustees he continues to receive false information from the school District, but the board of trustees failed to properly address this matter of a critical fact also.  Petitioner’s/Parents rights and responsibilities were not properly adhered to, exercised, or considered; therefore, Commissioner has jurisdiction.  

Petitioner argues that this is a violation of Texas Education Code sections 26.011, 26.001 and 7.057.  Section 7.057 provides that a person aggrieved by the school laws of Texas or an action or decision of a board of trustees that violates the school laws.  The facts as stated by Petitioner, even if true, do not allege a violation of section 26.001, section 26.011, or section 7.057 of the Texas Education Code.


Petitioner complains that:


Dr. Duryea writes in her letter addressed to Petitioner dated December 26, 2001, “You alleged Mrs. Collins said T. was wandering in the building on August 16, (2001) before being brought to the office.  In our conference you played an excerpt from a tape recording where Mrs. Collins stated “T. was wondering the building, but was never unsupervised.”  In the December 14, 2001, Level II conference Dr. Duryea said, “That seems contradictory doesn’t it?”  Referring to Mrs. Collins’ above-mentioned audiotape comment.  Dr. Duryea writes in her letter addressed to Petitioner, “My investigation revealed that T. was with adults during the dismissal time on August 16, 2001, but was taken to the front porch instead of to his school bus.  This caused him to miss his bus.”  The Petitioner’s questioned how could Dr. Duryea’s investigation reveal that because no one can remember or know what adults T.M. was with, or who took him to the front porch.  T.M. was wondering the building, as Mrs. Collins said.  T. was not supervised, and he missed his school bus during dismissal from school, on August 16, 2001.


The facts as alleged by Petitioner do not state a violation of the school laws of this state or the rules duly promulgated thereunder.


Petitioner states that:

[t]he Cypress-Fairbanks Independent School District provided the Petitioner with a copy of Level II conference transcript, at the request of the Texas Education Agency.  The copy that was provided by the District is incomplete and contains several inaccuracies, for example; on page one of Exhibit H, Dr. Duryea stated “There was one other request that you made of me, not associated with this complaint (referring to Petitioner’s inquiry of a possible third missed school bus incident involving T.M.), but you did in our telephone call earlier this week (December 10, 2001) establishing this meeting date (December 14, 2001).  You inquired about afternoon transportation arrangements for your son T. during the week of December 3 through 7.”  During the Level II conference Dr. Duryea said that Mrs. Collins has informed her that T. did not miss his school bus at all during the week of December 3-7, 2001.  Dr. Duryea did not mention an afternoon school bus discipline report that T.M., received on December 6, 2001.  Nor did Dr. Duryea mention the parent notification letter dated December 11, 2001, which is in reference to the December 6, 2001 discipline report.  The parent notification letter is dated five days after the alleged incident and three days prior to the Level II conference.  Dr. Duryea also handed Petitioner a memorandum from Mrs. Collins dated December 14, 2001.  I do not think that the discipline report or the parent notification existed until I inquired about the week of December 3-7, 2001.  If it did exist, I was not notified within the 24-hour guideline.  The memorandum that was generated/prepared by “KC” (Mrs. Karen Collins) does not mention an afternoon (school bus) discipline report dated December 6, 2001 or the parent notification letter dated December 11, 2001.  The Petitioner was informed by a reliable source that T. did indeed miss his school bus on the afternoon of December 6, 2001; therefore, Petitioner did not believe Mrs. Collins’ report/memorandum for many obvious reasons.  Petitioner was also disturbed about Dr. Duryea not following the letter and spirit of school District Policy FNG (Local); therefore, during the Level II conference, Petitioner told Dr. Duryea that he would notify the board of trustees in reference to the third school bus incident.  This statement is missing from the transcript and the statement is missing from the audiotape cassette that was recorded by Dr. Duryea on December 14, 2001.  Incomplete copies of the Level II conference were provided by Dr. Duryea days later.  The Commissioner has jurisdiction.  

Petitioner argues that this is a violation of Texas Education Code section 37.001(b) which states as follows:

A teacher with knowledge that a student has violated the student code of conduct shall file with the school principal or other appropriate administrator a written report, not to exceed one page, documenting the violation.   The principal or the other appropriate administrator shall, not later than 24 hours after receipt of a report from a teacher, send a copy of the report to the student’s parents or guardians.

The facts as stated by Petitioner do not establish a violation of section 37.001(b) of the Texas Education Code.

Petitioner claims that a number of exchanges with the administration and the board regarding his son and the underlying factual allegations violate the school laws of Texas or Section 7.057 of theEducation Code.  These facts do not state a legal violation. 
 


Petitioner’s Amended Petition states that:


.  .  .  he is receiving consistent inconsistencies in information provided by the school District, and that (T.M.) has been targeted and misrepresented because Petitioner (T.M.’s father) filed an official complaint against school District officials.  Evidence to support this claim or allegation was presented to the board of trustees and Mr. Richard Berry.  Petitioner’s representative (Mr. E. M.) even heavily emphasized that we (Mr. E. M. and Mr. T. M.) are here (Level III hearing) because of all the correspondences that were sent to Mr. Richard Berry, and not simply over a torn nametag (as Mr. Frailey seems to think).  In addition to that, Mr. E. M. specified that it would be difficult to cover everything (the entire complaint) in (only) ten minutes.  Ten minutes was the amount of time given to present the complaint.  Petitioner’s representative told the board of trustees that our phone numbers are in the school records, in the event that the District had any questions, suggestions, comments, or clarification on any issue (that was in the correspondences sent to Mr. Richard Berry).  Mr. Richard Berry failed to properly address the above-mentioned issues, thus allowing or permitting Mrs. Collins to create an unstable learning environment for T.M. and other children attending Wilson Elementary School.  Commissioner has Jurisdiction.

Petitioner states that the aforementioned conduct constitutes a violation of the Texas Education Code 4.001(b)(5), (7) and section 26.001.  Section 4.001(b) of the Texas Education Code provides in pertinent part as follows:

OBJECTIVE 5: Qualified and highly effective personnel will be recruited, developed, and retained.

OBJECTIVE 7: School campuses will maintain a safe and disciplined environment conducive to student learning.

The facts as alleged by Petitioner do not substantiate a violation of section 4.001(b) or section 26.001 of the Texas Education Code, or any of the school laws of this state.

Conclusion


Petitioner filed his Petition for Review with the Commissioner of Education in a timely manner.  In an appeal under section 7.057 of the Texas Education Code, the Commissioner of Education does not have jurisdiction over the allegation of a violation of the Family Educational Right to Privacy Act.  The Commissioner of Education does not have jurisdiction over an allegation of a violation of the cited United States Code Annotated.  Petitioner has failed to state a violation of the school laws of this state.

Conclusions of Law


After due consideration of the record, matters officially noticed, and the foregoing Findings of Fact, in my capacity as Commissioner of Education, I make the following Conclusions of Law:

1.
The Petition for Review was timely filed.

2.
The Commissioner lacks jurisdiction to hear this cause under section 7.057 of the Texas Education Code.

3.
The Commissioner does not have jurisdiction over an allegation of a violation of the Family Educational Right to Privacy Act in an appeal under section 7.057 of the Texas Education Code.

4.
The Commissioner of Education does not have jurisdiction over an allegation of a violation of 20 U.S.C. Chapter 70, Subchapter II, Part C, Subpart 5(a) #4 and (c) #1, dealing with teacher liability.

5.
The Amended Petition fails to state a violation of the school laws of this state. 19 Tex. Admin. Code § 157.1056.

6.
Petitioner’s appeal should be dismissed for lack of jurisdiction. 19 Tex. Admin Code. 157.1056(a).

O R D E R


After due consideration of the record, matters officially noticed and the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, in my capacity as Commissioner of Education, it is hereby


ORDERED that Petitioner’s appeal be, and is hereby, DISMISSED for lack of jurisdiction.


SIGNED AND ISSUED this 12th day of AUGUST, 2003.






______________________________________






ROBERT SCOTT






CHIEF DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

� The “school laws of this state” are defined as Title I and Title II of the Texas Education Code and the rules duly promulgated thereunder.  tex. educ. code § 7.057 (f)(2).


� For example, Petitioner demanded that a report regarding his son’s disciline forms be generated; he challenged the timing of the scheduling of a August conference prior to his son’s discipline reports which demonstrated targeting; he disagreed with the handling of the board hearing and the types of questions and comments of board members.





